Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen Meeting minutes Approved May 19, 2010

Members present: Chairman Linda Murray, Vice-Chairman Sarah Silk, Dave Senecal, Chuck Storm,

and Marge Webster

<u>Staff present:</u> Town Manager David W. Owen, Finance Director Pete Chamberlin, Planning and

Development Director Rob Houseman, Public Works Director Dave Ford, and

Recording Secretary Amelia Capone-Muccio

Chairman Murray called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM at the Wolfeboro Public Library.

Non-Public Session RSA 91-A: 3II

Mr. Owen stated a non-public session is needed for a personnel issue.

Consideration of Minutes

> April 19, 2010

Chairman Murray noted these minutes were tabled to correct the first paragraph in order to clarify the attachments. (See attachment #1)

Member Marge Webster moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen accept the minutes of April 19, 2010 as amended. Chuck Storm seconded. Members voted and being none opposed the motion passed.

> May 5, 2010

Ms. Silk amended page nine, the second sentence in the third paragraph to read as follows: *They notified the residents via WCTV and WASR of the break and that the water would be off until repaired.*

Ms. Silk amended page nine, the third bullet under Committee Reports to state: Friends of Abenaki are gearing up for securing donations for snowmaking.

Chairman Murray amended page eight, third paragraph from the bottom to read as follows: Chairman Murray questioned why they would not use a line of credit and provided examples of projects bonded that had not spent all the bonded funds, but were completed and the taxpayers are making payments for these funds that were not used.

Member Sarah Silk moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen accept the minutes of May 5, 2010 as amended. Marge Webster seconded. Members voted and being none opposed the motion passed.

Public Input

Wayne Kelloway joined the Board for discussion and provided a brief summary of his concerns to the Board. (See attachment #2, five pages) He explained his objection to actions by the Code Officer and that Mr. Totaro (whom he

is an abutter to) should have to go through Planning Board site review and approval that would include a public hearing for the changes made to his property.

Chairman Murray stated she has reviewed the issue with the Town Manager and Planning Director and suggested having the Planning Director contact Mr. Totaro to clarify his intended of the property and explain the Town's requirements.

The Board agreed to Chairman Murray's suggestion.

Ms. Silk noted that the complaints made have been forwarded to the appropriate Departments.

Public Hearing(s)

1. North Medford Club to hold the Lake Winnipesaukee Relay Race on September 25, 2010 from 9:00 AM – 3:00 PM beginning at the Alton Town Line (Route 28) to Tuftonboro Town Line (Route 109A).

Chairman Murray opened the pubic hearing.

Darlene Hoover joined the Board for discussion and explained this is the 22nd annual event with no changes.

Being no others to speak for or against the request, Chairman Murray closed the public hearing.

Ms. Silk noted the Department Head's comments on the permit.

Member Marge Webster moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to approve the Temporary Event permit for the North Medford Club to hold the Lake Winnipesaukee Relay Race on September 25, 2010 from 9:00 AM – 3:00 PM beginning at the Alton Town Line (Route 28) to Tuftonboro Town Line (Route 109A). Chuck Storm seconded.

DISCUSSION:

Ms. Silk questioned if the motion includes signing the D.O.T form.

Marge Webster agreed to the amendment to the motion and Chuck Storm seconded. Members voted and being none opposed the motion passed.

Bulk Vote

A. Property Tax Abatements/Refunds

Approvals

i.	Abatement/Refund #34	Tax Map 217, Lot 32-2
ii.	Abatement/Refund #39	Tax Map 250, Lot 7
iii.	Abatement/Refund #42	Tax Map 206, Lot 27
iv.	Abatement/Refund #48	Tax Map 271, Lot 1
٧.	Abatement/Refund #49	Tax Map 190, Lot 94

Denials

vi.	Abatement/Refund #31	Tax Map 199, Lot 8
vii.	Abatement/Refund #39	Tax Map 250, Lot 8
viii.	Abatement/Refund #41	Tax Map 206, Lot 4
ix.	Abatement/Refund #42	Tax Map 206, Lot 28
Χ.	Abatement/Refund #46	Tax Map 192, Lot 2
xi.	Abatement/Refund #47	Tax Map 200, Lot 21
xii.	Abatement/Refund #55	Tax Map 232, Lot 2,4 & 5
xiii.	Abatement/Refund #56	Tax Map 125, Lot 3

B. Property Tax Credits/Exemptions

Approvals

i. 6 Old Mill Drive Tax Map 231, Lot 78

C. Gravel Tax Levy Warrant

i. \$1.014.82

D. Timber Tax Levies

- i. \$3,608.29
- ii. \$1,619.19

Mr. Owen requested to add a Property Tax Levy in the amount of \$10,819,969.00 to the Bulk Vote.

Ms. Silk requested to remove Property Tax Abatement/Refund #55 to allow her more time to meet with the Assessing office.

Chairman Murray stated she had visited the Assessing office and they do have a map that clarifies such.

Member Sarah Silk moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to remove Property Tax Abatement/Refund #55 from the Bulk Vote. Chuck Storm seconded. Members voted and being none opposed the motion passed.

Member Dave Senecal moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to approve the Bulk Vote as listed above including the tax levy warrant. Marge Webster seconded. Members voted and being none opposed the motion passed.

New Business

A. Cell Phone Policy

Mr. Owen stated the Joint Loss Management Committee requested to withdraw this request, but he would like to replace the item with adoption of a Certificate of Resolution in regards to the bond approved last week.

Certificate of Authorization of Bonds and Approval of Loan Agreement with the New Hampshire Municipal bond Bank.

Member Marge Webster moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen authorize the Town Manager to sign the loan agreement and to certify the vote regarding authorization of bonds and approval of loan agreement with the New Hampshire Municipal Bond Bank as follows:

RESOLVED:

That under and pursuant to the Municipal Finance Act, Chapter 33, N.H.R.S.A., as amended, the New Hampshire Municipal Bond Bank Law, Chapter 35-A, N.H.R.S.A., as amended, and other laws in addition thereto, and to votes of the Issuer duly adopted on March 9, 2010 under Articles 11, 12, 13 and 15 of the Warrant for the Annual meeting of Issuer there be and hereby is authorized the issuance of a \$1,490,546 Bond of the Issuer (the "Bond") which is being issued by the Issuer for the following purposes: to finance (I) Center Street drainage upgrades; (ii) replacement of water mains and appurtenances in Glendon and Lehner Streets and other downtown streets; (iii) design and construction of Americans with Disabilities Act compliant entrances and restrooms at Pop Whalen Arena; and (iv) construction of streambank stabilization improvements along Smith River.

The Bond shall be dated as of its date of issuance, shall be in such numbers and denominations as the purchaser shall request, shall mature in accordance with the schedule set forth in Exhibit A to a certain Loan Agreement hereinafter described (the "Loan Agreement"), shall bear a net interest cost rate (as defined in the Loan Agreement) of three and seventy-five hundredths percent (3.75%) per annum or such lesser amount as may be determined by a majority of the Board. The Bond shall be substantially in the form set forth as Exhibit B to the Loan Agreement and otherwise shall be issued in such manner and form as the signatories shall approve by their execution thereof.

RESOLVED: That the Bond shall be sold to the Bond Bank at the par value thereof plus any applicable premium.

RESOLVED:

That in order to evidence the sale of the Bond, the Treasurer of the Issuer and a member of the Board are authorized and directed to execute, attest and deliver, in the name and on behalf of the Issuer, a Loan Agreement in substantially the form submitted to this meeting, which is hereby approved, with such changes therein not inconsistent with this vote and approved by the officers executing the same on behalf of the Issuer. The approval of such changes by said officers shall be conclusively evidenced by the execution of the Loan Agreement by such officers.

RESOLVED: That all things heretofore done and all action heretofore taken by the Issuer and its officers and agents in its authorization of the project to be financed by the Bond are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed.

RESOLVED: That the Clerk and the signers of the Bond are each hereby authorized to take any and all action necessary and convenient to carry out the provisions of this vote, including delivering the Bond against payment therefor.

RESOLVED: That useful lives of the projects being financed are in excess of the term of Bonds.

I further certify that said meeting was open to the public; the aforesaid vote was not taken by secret ballot nor in executive session; that notice of the time and place of said meeting was posted in at least two (2) appropriate public places within the territorial limits of the Issuer, or twenty- four (24) hours, excluding Sundays and legal holidays, before said meeting; that no deliberations or actions with respect to the vote were taken in executive session; and that the minutes of said meeting have been promptly recorded and have been or will be made open to inspection within one hundred forty-four (144) hours of said meeting, all in accordance with Chapter 91-A, N.H.R.S.A., as amended.

I further certify that the above vote has not been amended or rescinded and remains in full force and effect as of this date.

Chuck Storm seconded. Members voted and being none opposed the motion passed.

B. Water Sewer Connection Fees-Harriman Hill Workforce Housing

Dave Ford joined the Board for discussion and stated because this project is different than what is typically done for connections they had to base the water and sewer connection fees on a flow rate calculation and that they will not be required to pay the portion of the fee for constructing the lines, since they will be doing that work themselves. He recommended adopting the fees as outlined in the memorandum from Nobis dated April 29, 2010. (See attachment #3).

Ms. Silk questioned if the rate would be what is outlined on the rate sheet that is available at the Billing and Collections office.

Mr. Ford replied that sheet appears to have an error and will advise them that needs to be corrected.

Member Marge Webster moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to approve setting the water and sewer connection fees for the Harriman Hill workforce housing project based on the 4/29/2010 memo. Being no second the motion failed.

Ms. Silk questioned clarity on what the rates would be for phase III, noting the memo's rates are based on today's rates. She questioned what happens when the rate increases by the time phase III happens.

Mr. Ford replied that is a valid concern and that had not been considered. He explained this project is unique and is something that has never been done and the Board would need to decide how they would like to handle such.

Chairman Murray suggested having the rate set to what the current rate would be at that time.

Member Marge Webster moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen approve setting the water and sewer connection fees for the Harriman Hill workforce housing project based on the 4/29/2010 memo from Nobis with the current water and sewer rates at the time of the building permit. Sarah Silk seconded. Being none opposed, the motion passed.

C. Town Asset Management Plan

Mr. Owen stated the Board has been provided with a copy of the Town Asset Management Plan and it has been updated to include last year's capital outlay and warrant article projects, but does not include the 2010 projects. He

explained that the building evaluation reports will lead to a Municipal Asset Plan and noted the Board has been provided with a copy of the building evaluation of the Public Safety Building.

Mr. Ford stated he met with the Fire Chief today and he plans to work on the immediate repairs to the building within the budget, some short term repairs will be put through capital outlay and the long term solution will need to be addressed including the possibility of tearing down the apparatus bays and rebuilding them. He stated the next steps are to get cost estimates for repairs and to decide whether or not to tie all the building repairs into one warrant article or to do them individually.

Chairman Murray questioned the portion that could be torn down.

Mr. Ford replied only the back portion of the building because it does have a lot of issues.

Ms. Silk questioned the report and the areas that could not be looked at and if they will be reevaluated. It seems some of the concerns have simple solutions and she questioned the work that has been done in the past not meeting code. She stated she checked with the building official for permits and was concerned about continuing to hire contractors not meeting code thus the taxpayers pay for the job twice.

Ms. Webster stated the report was well worth it noting a lot of simple maintenance has not been done over the years and why don't they keep up to standards.

Mr. Storm agreed it seems they may pay twice for the work that was done over the years.

Mr. Ford pointed out that codes do change and the report is not complete. He noted that this is not his area of expertise. He questioned if the Board would want the Department Heads to do individual capital projects or one warrant article.

Chairman Murray replied those that could be done in Capital Outlay should be done as such. She did note an evaluation was done on the Public Safety Building in 2003 and it notes the same concerns, they need to get those on the CIP and fix them.

D. Town Hall Update

Mr. Owen stated members of the Town Hall Advisory Committee are present to provide an update of their work to date.

Joyce Davis, Chair, joined the Board for discussion and provided the Board with an update of their work to date by reading her attached statement dated May 19, 2010. (See attachment #4).

Richard O'Donnell, member of the Committee, joined the Board and provided the Board with a presentation of the proposed plans for the three levels and noted these plans derived from the original McGinley Kalsow & Assoc. plans with updates changing the expensive architectural costs. He stated they did add a third level with an elevator. He noted they also met with each Department Head to confirm their space needs. He reviewed each floor level with the Board.

DISCUSSION:

Mr. Senecal stated although they auditorium would not be completed right away the infrastructure for it would be done during the renovation.

Ms. Webster questioned the back entrance and if the main building access would be locked in the evening. Mr. O'Donnell replied it would and showed on the diagrams where it would be locked, but he had not considered the elevator.

Mr. Storm pointed out elevators can be set to lock out floors at a specific time.

Ms. Webster stated she would like to see a kitchen for the employees and a shower included in the design.

Chairman Murray stated the Board needs to take action on the two requests made.

Member Chuck Storm moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to approve the Committee in continuing to work on refining the plan to bring it to the level of detail needed to develop a professional cost estimate. Sarah Silk seconded. Being none opposed, the motion passed.

Member Sarah Silk moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to approve the Committee to meet with the Town's Energy Committee to discuss strategies for maximizing energy efficiency in the building. Chuck Storm seconded. Being none opposed, the motion passed.

Chairman Murray stated the Board should look into digital storing of documents.

Mr. Owen replied that there are grants available for digital storing of documents and that in a previous town he worked for they hired an archivist who reviewed all the documents and down sized what was stored. He pointed out this cost \$40,000 and took one year to do.

The Board agreed to have the Town Manger research digital storing and the possibility of hiring an archivist.

E. Wolfeboro Nursery School Lease

Mr. Owen stated the Nursery School has contacted him in regards to starting the negotiation process for the lease and the Board needs to designate a member to work with him.

Chairman Murray volunteered to work with the Town Manager.

F. Monthly Budget Expenditures and Revenues Report

Pete Chamberlin joined the Board for discussion and stated the following:

- He included a copy of Cross-Country Appraisals Contract which seems to be in line.
- He included a copy of the state of the State's revenues that he received at a conference at the Local Government Center.
- The expenditures are in line except for the Welfare Budget and the revenues look good.

Chairman Murray questioned if the decision to not pay non-vital accounts payable and if they used too much of the cash available to lower the tax rate and now they are not able to make it until after the taxes are collected. She wondered if next year not applying as much surplus to the tax revenue would provide the town with more cash.

Mr. Owen replied in other towns he had worked at they always had a warrant article for short term borrowing if needed.

Chairman Murray replied that is also something they could consider. She also questioned page 86 of the report under Electric Department Generation and the overage in the consultant line.

Mr. Owen replied that is the money for the monitoring wells of the parking lot the town purchased last year.

Any Other Business

Ms. Webster stated she would like to know the number of Call Firefighters, how many other towns have and how often Wolfeboro recruits for Call Firefighters.

Mr. Owen replied he would get such information from the Chief.

Ms. Silk provided an update from the Weekly Legislative Bulletin on the number of floor actions pending.

Town Manager's Report

Mr. Owen stated the following:

- Mr. Houseman had the clock on Town Hall serviced and repaired and it is keeping time and chiming again.
- The Cable TV Advisory Committee met and is working on the agenda for bargaining with Metrocast for a new Franchise Agreement. He stated one member resigned due to her work schedule and questioned how the Board would like to replace her.
- They have put out for bids on the Public Safety Building and Pop Whalen ADA improvements.

The Board agreed to allow the Cable TV Advisory Committee to seek a new member and if they are not successful the Board would put an ad in the paper.

Mr. Houseman stated he is awaiting an estimate to have the bushings of the clock repaired and repair to the curling letters on the clock.

Committee Reports

Mr. Storm stated the Planning Board had a work session on the changing the parking ordinance to parking regulations.

Ms. Silk stated the following:

- They held their first Hazardous Waste Collection for the season this past weekend and had 85 households attend.
- The McNeil Company has recalled several products such as Children and Infants Tylenol, Motrin, Zyrtec and Benadryl and consumers can visit the website to find out more about the recall. She stated that consumers can bring those recalled products to the medicine collections on the third Saturday in June and August in Wolfeboro

8:30 AM to Noon and on the second Saturday in September in Alton. Alton and Wolfeboro do not have to pay for the collection, but any other towns may participate for \$25.

Chairman Murray stated the following:

- The EDC Future Forum was Monday and will be aired on WCTV next weekend. If anyone has any suggestions to contact the Town Manager.
- The Milfoil Committee meets next week to discuss the purchase of the Diver Assisted Harvesters and reminded the public they will be hand pulling in Back Bay and Wolfeboro Bay June 7-11, 2010.
- The 250th Anniversary Committee will have a costume contest in the Great Smith River Canoe Race, will participate in the Boat Museum anniversary party on 5/28 and will be holding a barn dance on June 12 at the

	Moody Shop.	Barn.	Tickets	are	available	at	Avery	Insurance,	Chamber	of	Commerce,	Town	Hall	and	Black's	Gif
Questions from the Public																

None.

Questions from the Press

None.

Being no further business before the Board, Chairman Murray entertained a motion to enter non-public session.

Member Marge Webster moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to enter non-public session at 8:07 PM to discuss personnel issue. Member Sarah Silk seconded. Roll call vote: Marge Webster-yes, Sarah Silkyes, Dave Senecal-yes, Chuck Storm-yes and Linda Murray-yes, the motion passed.

The Board re-entered public session at 9:14 PM.

Chairman Murray announced that the Board sealed the minutes of the May 19, 2010 non-public session by a 2/3rd vote as required by law.

Being no further business before the Board, Chairman Murray entertained a motion to adjourn.

Member Dave Senecal moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to adjourn at 9:15PM. Member Sarah Silk seconded. Being none opposed, the motion passed.

Respectfully submitted, Amelia Capone-Muccio Amelia Capone-Muccio